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Members' Report ‘
Management, on behalf of the Members, presents its report and the audited financial statements of Hogan
Lovells Intemational LLP (hereafter referred to as “the LLP") for the year ended 31 December 2022. :

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are the statutory accounts for the LLP and reflect the resuilts for the year ended
31 December 2022. The financial statements consolidate the accounts of the LLP and all its subsidiary
undertakings ("the group®), drawn up for the year ended 31 December 2022. -

Princlpal activity
The principal activity of the LLP and the Group is the provision.of legal services from offices in 22 countnes,
including branches in 6 countries. .

" Management team
Overall responsibility for the management of the LLP rests with the management team. Throughout the year
~ except as indicated below, the following have been Members of the management team: )

Marie-Aimee de Dampierre, Chair*
Miguel Zaldivar, CEO*
Michael Davison, Deputy CEO
Ina Brock (resigned 30 June 2022)
Alice Valder Curran (resigned 15 January 2022)
Janice Hogan (appointed 16 January 2022)
Andreas Von Falck*
" Desmond Hogan
Burkart Goebel (resigned 31 December 2022)
Karen Hughes* ' :
Adrian Walker* ' .
Owen Chan*
Lloyd Parker:
Patrick Ayad (appointed 1 July 2022) .
Penny Angell
. Toblas Faber*
Stefan Schuppert (resigned 31 December 2022)
Sebastien Gros :
. James Doyle
Jose Maria Balana
Miriam Gundt (appointed 1 January 2023)
Detiaf Hass (appointed 1 Jahuary 2023)

* = designated member .
Except as in_dibated abov_é, there are no other designated members.

Finance and capital structure

The LLP is financed by a combination of Members' capttal, undistributed profits (mcludmg tax retentlons)
and borrowing facilities arranged with a number of banks. Members’ capital increased during the year
ended 31 December 2022 by £10 million to £112.1 million (2021: £102.1 million).

The Group had £294 7 million of net cash at 31 December 2022 (2021: £272.6 million). Further details of
the financlal position of the group, its cash flows, liquidity ‘position and bom)wmg facilities are described in,
the notes to the accounts.
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Members' Report continued...

Business Review o

Our underlying business performance for the first half of 2023 has been strong, exhibiting the benefits of our
global capability, the continued demonstration of the strength of our client work across our practice areas,
industry sectors, and regions, and the positive effects of tight cost controt in the current economic conditions.

Management has produced forecasts and cash flow projections, that have also been sensitised to reflect
potential deciines in revenue in the latter part of 2023 and into 2024. These demonstrate the Group has
sufficient cash reserves to enable the Group to meet its obligations as they fall due for a peried of at least 12
months from the date of signing of these financial statements.

While there remains an ongoing risk of the economic environment having an adverse impact on some
of our clients, taking into account our broad practice, extensive geographic reach, available bank
facilites and the flexibility we have to vary the timing of payments to our Partners, and having
considered the group's forecasts and projections Management is satisfied that it is appropriate for
these accounts to be prepared on the going concem basis. . )

Members’ profit share, drawings and the subscription and repayment of Members’ capital

In the year ended 31 December 2022, all Members were partners and shared in the profits of the LLP.
Where a Member receives his or her remuneration as an employee or consultant, this is presented under
the heading "Members' remuneration charged as an expense" in the consolidated income statement.

Each Member's capnal subscription is linked to his or her share of profit and is repald in full on ceasing to
be 'a Member. The rate of capital subscription is determined by the Board depending upon the financing
requiremenits of the business.

Members draw a proportion of their profit share in monthly on account instalments together with interim
" distributions during the year in which the profit is generated. The balance of their profits, in most cases net
of a tax retention, is paid in instalments in the subsequent year. All payments are made subject to the cash
requirements of the business. Tax retentions are paid to the relevant tax authority as required with any
excess being released to Members as appropriate.

As Members draw a proportion of thelr expected profit share during the year before the profits.for the year
have been determined.and allocated to them, by the year-end their personal current accounts with the
LLP are in deficit. The total of these current accounts is shown in the Consolidated Balance Sheet within
“Amounts due from Members®, Once the profit for the year has been allocated, the Members’ current
accounts are typically in surplus by the amounts retained to seltle their tax habulmes and the amount of
their share of the year's profit in excess of that alréady drawn
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Energy. and carbon report

Hogan Lovells is a signatory to the UN Race to Zero and has set fimwide carbon emissions reduction
targets that are consistent with limiting global warming to 1.5°C. We have committed to setting targets in
line with the Science Based Targets Initiative, which include achieving a 80% reduction in Scope 1 and
Scope 2 (market based) emissions from a 2019 baseline by 2030.

~Our transition plan includes sourcing renewable energy where possible, eliminating sources of Scope 1
emissions; implementing new business travel policies, setting climate related requirements for our
suppliers, engaging with our clients to support their sustainability journeys, and engaging with our peers
to support the decarbonisation of the legal sector. .

Our greenhouse gas emissions aré distlosed annually through the CDP reporting framew_ork. covering
our global portfolio. This report covers our UK operations, as required under the Limited Liability
Partnerships Regulations 2008 as amended. ’

Our relevant energy use and carbon related emissions stem from our three offices, two in London and
one in Birmingham. and our business travel. The energy use is summarised below.

Energy Source . Units : 2020 - 2021 2022.
Gas Oil (Backup generators only) kWh " 437,000 438,000 - N/A

_Natural Gas - kWh 7,084904 6,819,469 4,475,597
Electricity ‘ kWh 6,900,984 ‘ 6,225,613 .. 7,184,860
Total . kWh 14,422,888 13,483,082 11,660,557
Energy Intensity (measured against rentable :

floor area) kWh/m? 481 450 402

We have decreased our overall energy consumption since the 2019 baseline which has in part been due
to the introduction of energy efficiency measures, particularly in our largest site in London. In addition, in
2022 we moved ane of our premises to a more effi ment building with a smaller floor area.

. The carbon emissions associated with the energy use in our ofﬁces is summarised below. No business
travel emissions are included as we purchase transportation services and do not procure fuel to supply
our own vehicles. The energy supplying our electric vehicles would be captured under Scope 2.’

GHG Emissions (tCO2e) . 2020 2021 2022

Scope 1 1,337 1,583 817 .
Scope 2 (location-based) 1,602 . 1,321 1,301
Total - . 2,939 2,904 - 2,118

The calculation of carbon emissions follows the GHG protocol methodology and is based on emissions
factors for 2022 published by the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. Scope 2
emissions are calculated according to the location-based method for comparison, although the majority
of our electricity use is now supplied from a renewable source.



Hogan Lovells Intemational LLP Aninual Report & Financial Stalements for the year ended 31 December 2022

‘Memb'ers" Report -coritihuéd.;. |

Auditor _
Deloitte LLP will be proposed for reappointment:

Signed on behalf of the Board

”/} ole Vk .
Marie-Aimee de Dampierre -
Chair ' LT
25 September 2023
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Statement of members responsubllltles

The Members are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the ﬁnanclal statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulanons

The Limited Liability Partnershlp (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations
2008 require the Members to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Members have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United. Kingdom adopted
international’ accounting standards. The financial statements also comply with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the IASB. The financial statements-are also required by law to
be prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, as applicable to limited liability partnerships.

lntemational Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year

the firm's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation

of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition

criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the Intemational Accounting Standards Board's

‘Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements’. In virtually alt circumstances, a

_ fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs However, Members are also
required to: :

» properly select and apply accounting policies;

e present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable ‘and understandable information; and

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements of the financial
reporting framework are insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and condmons on the entity's financial position and financial
performance. .

The Members are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the firm and enable them. to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, as apphcable to limited liability partnerships. They are
also_responsible for safeguarding the assets of the firm and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularities.

These responsibilities were exercised by the LLP Board on behalf of the Members.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Hogan Lovells International LLP

Report on the audit of the financial statements
- Opinion

In our opinion:

o the financial statements of Hogan Lovells International LLP (the ‘parent limited Iiability
partnership’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) give a true and fair view of the state of the group 's
and of the limited liability partnership's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the group's profit
for the year then ended;

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
adopted intemational accounting standards and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as Issued by the Intemnational Accounting Standards Board (IASB); -

o the parent limited liability partnership financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom adopted intemational accounting standards and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to limited liability
partnerships; and :

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 as applied to limited liability partnerships.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consolidated income statement;

the consclidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidated and parent limited liability partnership balance sheets;

the consolidated and parent limited liability partnership cash flow statements;

the consolidated and parent limited liability partnership statement of changes in equity; and
the related notes 1 to 28.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and, as regards the parent limited liability
partnership financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006
as applied to limited liability partnerships.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemen(s section of our report.

We are independent of the group and of the parent limited Iiabillty partnership in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,-including the
Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC's') Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Concluélons relating to going concern

In audxtmg the financial statements, we have concluded that the members' use of the going concem
basls of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identiﬁed any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent
limited Hability partnership’s ability to continue as a going concem for a period of at least twelve months
from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the members With respect to going concem are described
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Independent auditor's report to the members of
Hogan Lovells International LLP continued...

in the relevant sections of this report.
Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information
contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves, If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are requlred to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of members

As explained more fully in the statement of members' responsibilities, the-members are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and
for such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the group’s and the
parent limited Iiability partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the members
either intend to liquidate the group or the parent limited liability partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thatan .
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect 4 material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise: from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

A further description of'our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This descnphon forms part of our auditor's
report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are mslances of non-compllance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of Irregularities, including fraud.  The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
lrregulannes including fraud is deta1ed below.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of
Hogan Lovells International LLP continued...

We considered the nature of the Group's industry and its control environment, and reviewed the Group's
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud. and compliance with laws and
regulations.

We also enquired of management and those charged with govemance about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of lrregulantles including obtaining and reviewing the Group’s documentation of

its policies and procedures relating to:

¢ identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of
any instances of non-compliance;
« detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual,
' suspected or alleged fraud, and
« reviewing internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-comphance with laws and
regulations;

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the Group operates in, and
identified the key laws and regulations that:

s had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The key laws and regulations we considered in this context included UK Bribery Act,
Companies Act 2006 and the tax leglsiation.

« do not have a direct effect on the financial Statements but compliance with which may be -
fundamental to the Group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penality.

We discussed among the audit erigagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may
exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following area,
and our specific procedures performed to address it are described below:

*» We presume a risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition. This
has been pinpointed to the valuation of amounts to be billed to clients, more specifically the
accuracy of the realisation rates applied in the calculation of amounts to be billed to clients To
address this risk, we have performed the following procedures:

o Recalculated the realisation rates used, including assessing and challenging the
methodology applied; ’

o Performed substantive testing over amounts to be billed to clients through post year-

- end billing analysis; and

o Assessed the design and implementation of internal controls around the valuation of
amounts to be billed to clients and the calculation and LLP's methodology for the
realisation rates.

In common with all audits under 1SAs (UK), we are also required. to perform specific procedures fo
respond to the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override
of controls, we tested the appropriateness of joumal éntries and other adjustments; ‘assessed whether
the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated
the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of
business.

" In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks-Identified included the following:

e reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect
on the ﬁnancaal statements;

« performing analytlcal procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may
indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;
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lndependent auditor's report to the members of
Hogan Lovells International LLP continued...

« enquiring of management and in-house legal counsel conceming actual and potential litigation
and claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and
« reading minutes of meetings of those charged with govemance.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2008 as apphed to. limited liability parinerships we are required to repon in .
respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent limited liability partnership, or
retums adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or .
» the parent limited lability partnership financial statements are not in agreement with the
_ accounting records and returns; or
e wehave not received all the information and explanattons we requlre for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the limited liability partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to limited liability partnerships. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the limited liability partnership’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the limited
liability partnership and the limited liability parthership’s members as'a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Jeremy Black ACA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

" London, United Kingdom

2ASeptember 2023



Hogan Lovells Intémational LLP Annua! Repor & Finarcial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

Consolidated iricome statement

1

Profit for.the'pefi'_c;d for division amongst equity Members

Note‘ 4
2022 2021
L _£000  £000
Revenue 4 1,089,785 1,050,955
Other operating income 4,146 2,362
Operating expenses S
Staff costs . 6 (38_6.58_2) (378,692)
Depreciation and amortisation . . 10/12 (17,633) (25.265) -
Depreciation and amortisation — Right-of-use assets 14 (48,790) (46,457)
Other opérating expenses .. (195,407) ¢! 61,571)
Profit from operations 445,519 441,342
Investment income 7 . 964 1 84
Finance expense 7 (5,755) (6,398)
Profit before tax 5 440,728 435,128
Tax expense 8 (36,279) (30,787)
Profit before Members' remuneration and profit share ' 405,449 404,341
Members' remuneration charged as an expense (57,499) (49,265)
9 347,950 355,076

The results from both years were derived from continuing operations.
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Consolldated statement of comprehenswe income . ..
- Note™ 2022 2021

. . £000 £000
' Profit for the fi nanc;al penod for division amongst equnty S ' 347.950 255 076
Members : : W i 195,07

Other comprehenswe lncome

Itern's that will riot be reclassified subsequently to the © R

consohdated income statement: ;

Actuanal (loss)/gam on deﬁned beneﬁt pension scheme 2t (7,600) . 22500
ltemss that may be reclassified subsequently to the o ’
consolndated income statement:

Exchange differences on _tran_slatlon of foreign operations’ 23,1'99 20,027.
Other cb;n.prehen'si'\(e gain for the period - . 15599 51527

Total comprehenéive income for the period - ' 363,54_§ ‘ 406,603

.
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. ;Cbnsol'i_d,ated batance sheet

Note

2022

£'000 -

2021
£000

Assets

Non-current assets .

Intanglble assets , 10
Property, plant and equipment - . . 12
Right-of-use assets ' 14
Fmance lease recewables 17
Investments

Current assets

Client and other receivables ‘ 16
Current tax recelvables

Fmance Iease recelvables o . 17 .

580
45,808

190,448

282
... 485

3,393
42,652
208,162
© 410
20

237,583

566,982
4918
93
294,702

-254,637

521 013
4,337
- 490
272,551

Cash and cash equivalents

- 866 695-"' 5

1,798,391

Total as;‘séts N

1 104 278

;’1053028_'

Luabtlitles
Current Ilabnlities :
Tradé and other payébles .19
Current tax hablllttes
_Lease iiabilities ‘ 18
. Members caprtat : 22

309,084
14,227
61,207

112,005

426 .

256,168
15,653
153,879
102;104
-483:

Provisrons Do main _ 20

Non-current liabilities’ .
Leasa liabilities o _ 18
Retirement benefit scheme deficit ‘21

497,039

158,338

7050

8425 i

428,287

. 4,500
8,549 .

Provisions . . .. , CL20.

& 193.7.3.015-_

Equity

< Members other reserves L 22

431 011-_‘_5

Total,’llabrlgt_n_es,and,equity,;_“, S

ts amounts duefrom Members ‘
ities — Members capntal S . .22

Equity = bther'reserves T S

16/22 .

(109,917).
112,005 .
435426

(112,210) -

102; 104 .

431,011

Total Members' interests. o

437,604,

420,905



Hogan Lovells Intemational LLP Annual Report & Financial Statements for the ysar ended 31 December 2022 14
‘—

I-ann Lovells lnternatlonal LLP vbalance sheet

Note . 2022 2021
£'000 £000 .
Assets o
Non-current assets . )
Intangible assets . 1 562 3,247
Property, plant and equipment 13 33,829 31,408
Right-of-use assets ’ . 14 - 113,154 126,905
Finance lease receivables ’ . 17 282 377
Investments - ' 15 11,1585 10,952
— 158,982 © 172,890
Current assets : . v
- Client and other receivables 16 445,255 403,685
Current tax receivables . 3,238 3,894
Finance lease receivables : 17 57 . 80
Cash and cash equivalents ' ' 252,243 236,836
: o . . ] . .700,793: 644,495
. Total assets , : . . 859,775 817,385
" Liabilities . '
Current liabilities . ) .
Trade and other payables 19 . 269,937 217,801
Current tax liabilities h o : 13,543 14,398
‘Lease liabilities : 18 35,104 33,961
Members' capital 23 112,095 102,104

Provisions 20 . - 426 483

431,105 368,747

Non-current liabilities :
Lease liabilities - K 18 100,574 114,598

Re_h'renie_nt benefit scheme deficit . 21 7,050 4,500
Provisions . 20 6,425 8,549
114,049 127,647
Equity ‘ _ ’
Members' other reserves : 2 314,621 320,991
Total llabilities and equity 859,775 = 817,385
Members’ interests .
Current assets - amounts due from Members 16/23 (109,917)  (112,210)
Current liabilities — Members' capital ' 23 112,095 102,104
Equity.— other reserves 23 314,621 320,991
Total Me'mbers‘ Interests P - 316,799 ‘310,885

" The profit for dwusnon amongst members for the ﬁnancual period dealt with in the financial statements
of the LLP was £261,185,000 (2021: £269,472 000)

These financial statements of Hogan Lovells Intemational LLP, regiStered number 0C323638,
including the consolldated financial statements, were,ap roved by the Board on behaif of the
Members and sugned on behalf of the Member H $ebtember 2023 by: '

Mocfof—

Marie-Aimee de Damplerrs, Chair Miguel Aaldiv

£O Michae! Davison, Deputy CEO.
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~ Consolidated cash flow statement.

2022

2021

Note
£°000 £'000
Net cash from operations 24 453,846 447,425
Investing activities
‘Purchase of intanglble assets . - (117) (763)
. Purchase of property plant and equipment (20,583) {6, 329)
Acquisition of joint venture ' '(203) -
Interest received 953 168
Finance lease income 515 187
Proceéds on disposal of property, plant and equipmient . |- R 1
Net cash used in Investing activities (19,416) - (6,736)
Flnancing activhies ) :
Members’ capltal introduced 18,139 13,709
Capital repayments to Members (8,148) (4,957)
Payments to ahd on behalf of Members (375,168) ‘ (343,2{9)
Interest paid (176) (369)
_ Repayment of lease liabilitiés ) (50,137) - (62,392) .
- Net cash used in fi‘n‘a,nc_lng activitles (415,490) " (387,258)
Netincrease in cash and cash equwalents 18,940 63,431
Cash and cash equnvalents at beginning of period 272 551 220,732
Effects of forelgn exchange rate changes on cash 3 211 (1.612)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 294,702 272,551
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flow statement
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Hogan Lovells International LLP cash:
T - —_— Note 2022 2071
£000 £000
Net cash from operations 24 342,581 339,190
Investing activities - o
Purchase of intangible assets (71) (677)
- Purchase of property, plant and equipment (12,035) (4,477)
Acquisition of joint venture (203) L.
interest received 920 150
Finance lease income 103 125
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment . ..20 L 4
Net cash used in investing activities ) .(11,266) (4,875)
Financing activities SR i
Members’ capital introduced . 18,139 13,709
Capital repayments to Members " (8,148) (4/957)
Payments to and on behalf of Members (293,605) (264,761)
- Interest paid " {172) (378)
Repayment of lease liabilities (32,661) (32,372)
Net cash used in financing activities - {(316,447) (288,759)
Net increase in cdsh and cash equivalents 14,868 45,556
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 236,836 191,671
‘Effects of foreign exchange rate changes on cash 539 (391)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 252,243 236,836
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Consolldated statement of changes in equnty

17

Noie 2022 20_g1

£'000 £'000
Equny a’t 1January N T 431,011 333,172
Profit for the financial period attnbutable to equuty Members- 347,950 355 076
Actuanal (loss)lgaln on defined benef t pensnon scheme . (7,600) 22, 500
Exchange dlfferences on, translatlon of forelgn operauons . 23,199 29, 027"

’ Total comprehens:ve income for the penod o ) S ' 363,549 406,603

Proﬁt'allocated to Members (359.'1 34) (308,764_)
Equity at 31 December ' ] S 22 435426 431,011

Hogan Lovells International LLP statement of changes in

equnty L
NOte, - 2022 s 2021

- £'000 £000

Profit for the fi nancial period attnbulable to equnty Menmbers - 261,185 269,472
Actuarial (loss)lgam on defined benefit pension scheme (7,600) 22,500
Exchange differeénces on translahon of forelgn operations - 17,859 24,842
Total comprehensive income for the period . 21444, 316814
Profit allocated to Membérs (277,814) (242 779)
: 320 991

Equity at31 December .~ . . 23 3tapa
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Notes to the financial statements

1. General information

Hogan Lovells Intenational LLP is a limited liability partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom and
registered in England and Wales. Its registered office is Atlantic House, Holbomn Viaduct, London
EC1A 2FG.

" The principal activity of the LLP is the provision of legal services.

The groups principal operanons are in the United Kingdom and these financial statements are
presented in pounds sterling. Operations outside of the United Kingdom are included in accordance
with the policies set out below.

2.  Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied consistently
throughout the current year and the previous year, unless otherwise noted.
) ‘ o

Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) .as issued by the
Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) on the historical cost basis amended for certain items
at fair value and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to limited liability partnershlps
reporting under IFRS. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in. an orderly transaction between market partncnpants at the measurement date,
regardiess of whether that price is d[rectly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

Going Concern

As stated in the Report to Members the financial statements have been prepared on a going concem
basis.

Management has produced forecasts and cash flow projections, that have also been sensitised to

reflect potential declines in revenue in the latter part of 2023 and into 2024.. These demonstrate the -

Group has sufficient cash reserves to enable the Group to meet its obhgahons as they fall due for a
period of at least 12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements.

While there remains an ongoing risk of the economic environment havnng an adverse impact on some
of our clients, in relation to uncertain factors including macro-economic factors, taking into account our
broad practice, extensive geographic reach, -available bank facilities and the flexibility we have to vary
the timing of payments to our Partners, and having considered the group®s forecasts and projections,
Management is sahsﬁed that it is appropriate for these accounts fo be prepared on the going concem’
‘basis.
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2, Accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation

The group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the LLP and entities controlled .
by the LLP (its subsidiary undertakings). Control is achieved where the LLP has the power over the
investee; is exposed, or has rights, to a variable retum from its involvement with the investee; and has
the ability to use its power to affect its returns. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the group.
Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

No individual profit and loss account is presented for the LLP as permitted by section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006. The profit for division amongst members for the financial year dealt with in the
financial statements of the LLP was £261,185,000 (2021: £269,472,000).

New and revised IFRS accounting standards

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new
and revised IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 (including the June 2020 and Insurance Contracts

December 2021 Amendments to IFRS 17) i

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets befween an Investor
and its Assoclate or Joint Venture

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice  Disclosure of Accounbing Policies
Statement 2 S -

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accoun?ing Estimates

’

The members do not expecl that the adoption of the Sta'ndards listed above will have a material
Impact on the financial statements of the Group in future periods. )

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each of the group's operations are presented in the currency of
the primary economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the
group financial statements, the results and financial position of each operation are expressed in sterling,
which is the functional currency of the LLP, and the presentation currency for the group financial -
statements. .

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity concerned are -
recorded at the rates of exchange prevalhng on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities which are not denominated in the functional currency of the entity concermed are translated at
the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. These translation dlfferences are dealt with in the income
statement. .

Exchange differences are recognised In profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which setiement is_
neither planned nor likely to occur, which form part of the net investment in a forelgn operation, and
which are recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve and recognlsed in profit or loss on
disposal of the net investment.

The results of the group s operations where the functlonal currency is not sterling are translated at the
average rates of exchange for the period and their balance sheets at the rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date. Differences arising on the translation of the opening net assets and the results
of these operations are accounted for in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. It represents the
fair value of the consideration receivable in respect of professional services: provided during the period,
exclusive of recoverable expenses and value-added taxes.

A contract with a customer is recognised when a contract is legally enforceable by the Group. For each
contract with a customer, the Group performs the following, as required by the five-step model included within
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers: it identifies the contract with a customer, Identifies the
performance obligation in the contract, determines the transaction price, the Group allocates the transaction
price to the performance obligation and it recogmses revenue as the performance obllgabon is satisfied in a
manner that depicts the transfer of the services promised to the client.

The Group recognises revenue over time. This Is primarily because the performance of its services does not
create an asset with an altemative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

The Group does not provide extended terms on its services and therefore no significant financing components
are identified by the Group. The Group applies the revenue constraint in respect of variable consideration by
estimating the amount recoverable from clients on unbilled items. This estimate is based on assessment of
the Group's historical recoverability rates, contingencies, agreements with clients and amounts deemed
imecoverable. Revenue is only recognised on contingent matters from the point at which it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognised will not occur.

Amounts to be billed to clients are contract assets, recognised when a performance obligation has been
satisfied but not yet billed. Contract assets are transferred to client receivables when the right to consideration
is unconditional and billed per the terms of the contractual agreement. Billings are at periodic intervals or upon
achievement of contractual milestones.

Based on the above, the Group is using the practical expedient provided by IFRS 15,121, from provndmg
further lnformahon about its remaining performance obligations.

Intangible assets

Where computer software is not an integral part of a related item of computer hardware, the software
is treated as an Intangible asset, held at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss.

Consideration paid to purchase the Hogan & Hartson client base in certain offices has been recognised
as an intangible asset, held at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss.

Amortisation is pfovided to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of intangible assets on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful economic lives, which are as follows:

Computer software 3 -Syears
Consideration for client base 8 years

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is slated at cost less accumulated depreqauon and any impairment loss. The

gain or loss ansmg on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carnying amount of the asset and is recognised in income.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less the estimated 're.sidua‘l value of property, plant and
equipment by equal instalments over the estimated useful economic lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5- 10 years
Fixtures and fittings 4 -5years
Computer equipment 3-5years

Motor vehicles 4 years
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2, Accounting policies (continugd)

impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impaimment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its camrying amount, the canrying
amount of }he asset is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Investments

_Investments are stated at costless provision for impairment. Investments are considered to be impaired
when their carrying value is greater than thelr estimated recoverable amount.

Taxation

The taxation payable on profits of the limited fiability partnership in most jurisdictions, including the UK,
is the personal liability of the Members. A retention from profit distributions is made to fund the taxation
payments on behalf of Members.

The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax relating to the corporate subsidiaries and cenéin
branches where the tax payable on profits is the liability of the LLP and not the individual Members.

The current tax expense is based on taxable profils of the corporate subsidiaries and branches
consolidated within these financial statements. Taxable profit excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. .

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying

“amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that laxable profits wm be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. -

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the group's balance sheet when the group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Client receivables

Client receivébies are initially recognised at fair value, and are subsequently reduced for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. .

Cash and cash equivalénts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, on demand deposlls and other short-term highly
liquid investments.

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently reduced for discounts given
by suppliers.

\
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
Leases
The Group as a lessée

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group

recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to alt lease arrangements

in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or.

less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office fumiture
- and telephones). For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattem in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present valué of the lease paymeﬁts that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the lessee uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: .

¢ Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

e Variable lease payments that depend an an index or rate, initially measured using the index or
rate at the commencement date; .
The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

e The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options;
and

¢ Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the camying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to refiect the lease
payments made.

_The Group remeasures the lease llability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use asset) whenever:

s The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting
in a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase opuon in which case the lease liability .
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

e The lease payments change due to manges in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change
is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

» Alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received. and any initial
direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less aocumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the
site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under 1AS 37. To the extent that the costs
relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the related nght—of-use asset unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost ¢f the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

“The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a nght-of-use asset is.impaired and accounts for any
identified |mpa|nnent loss.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in ‘Other operating
expenses' In profit or loss (see Notes 14 and 18).

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 pemmits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead
account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has not
used this practical expedient. For contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the conslderation in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone pnce of the non-lease components.

The Group as lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership o the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the rgélevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred In negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group's finance lease receivables. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

-Members’ Interests and current and non-current debts due to and from Members
Members subscribe capital to the firm in proportion to their equity interest in the firm. Members’ capital
may only be withdrawn when a Member retires from the LLP. As Members may retire from the LLP with
120 days' notice, Members' capital has been classified as a current liability. Drawings by Members on
account of unallocated profits have been classifi ed as Members' current assets within Members'’
interests.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and itis .
probable that the group will be required to setfle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
management'’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet
date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. The increase during the period
in the discounted amount arising from the passage of time and the effect of any change in the discount
rate is charged to the income statement as a finance cost.

The group maintains an appropriate level of professional indemnity insurance cover which is reviewed
annually. Provision or disclosure as appropriate is made for material costs that may arise from any
claims against the group, net of the related insurance receivable.

Bank borrowings
Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the value of proceeds on initial recognition.
Interest is included in finance cost and is determined using the effective interest rate method.

Retirement benefit obligations

Contributions to the defined contribution schemes are charged to the income statement when they
become payable. Differences between contributions payable in the period and contributions actually paid
are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

Defined benéfit pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
credit method and discounted at a rate determined by reference to the current estimated rate of retumn
on a high quality sterling corporate bond of equivalent term to the scheme liabilities. Defined benefit
pension scheme assets are measured at fair value. Actuarial valuations are performed as at each balance
sheet date based on full valuations obtained at least triennially and updated for subsequent changes in
material assumptions. The resulting net defined benefit asset or liability is presented separately on the
face of the balance sheet.

The interest cost arising from the unwinding of the discount net of the expected retum on scheme assets is
recognised as a finance cost.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of
comprehensive income.

3. Crlfical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of group financial statements under IFRS fequires management to make judgements
and estimations that affect the reported values of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities. These are.
reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Critical jud ements ina ing the Group's accounting policies

Management are of the oplmon that there are no judgements critical in the application of the Group S
accounting pollcxes

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertamty at the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing material adjustment of the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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3. Critical accounting judgemenfs and key sources of estimation uncertainty (contihued)

Provision for post-employment benefits

Estimates are required in the accounting for defined benefit pension plans, including the selection of
discount rates, inflation rates, mortality rates and the prediction of the rate of future salary and pension
increases. These estimates are made by management based on the advice of qualified experts, Details
of the assumptions used and the sensitivity of the benefit obligation to these assumptions are set outin
Note 21. In the current year, the net retirement benefit scheme deficit is valued at £7.05 million (2021:

£4.5 million).

Amounts to be billed to clients

Estimatiort uncertainty exists regarding the amount that will ultimately be recovered from clients in
. respect of unbilled revenue at the year end, and has been identified as an other estimate. Amounts to
be billed to clients are valued on the basis of recorded time at the year end, then provided against for
factors such as historical recovery rates and contingencies. In the current year these are valued at

£118.6m (2021: £103.5 million).

Client receivables provision

The valuation of the provision for irrecoverable client receivables is a key estimate. In the current
year, this provision is valued at £17 7m million (2021: £15.5 million). This is an estimate of the
likelihood of default based on an analysis of historical recovery rates, - whilst Incorporatmg
expectations of current and future economic conditions.

if the expected credit loss rates had been 5% higher lhan 31 December 2022 ;

The loss allowance on trade debtors not past due would have been £0.07m (2021:
£0.08m) higher

- the loss allowance on trade debtors past due between 0 and 30 days would -have been
£0.1m (2021: £0.1m) higher.

- the loss allowance on trade debtors past due between 31 and 120 days would have been
£0.14m (2021: £0.15m) higher.

- the loss allowance on trade debtors past due greater than 120 days would have been
£0.57m (2021: £0.45m) higher.

4. Revenue

2022 2021
- £000 £'000

Revenue generated by Region:
413,442 414,362

Unitéd Kingdom

Contiriental Europe ; 553,229 518,821
Asia, Pacific and Mlddle East - 123,114 117,772
Total o o ) 1,089,785 1,050,955

All revenue is generated from the group's. principal activity, being the provision of legal services.
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5. Profit before taxation
2022° - 2021
£000 - "E’OOO

Proﬁt before tax has been arrived at after chargnngl(credmng) '

Operatlng lease payments _ o

=land and buildings . . 889 1,004

—cther : Co - 38 16
Amortisation of intanglble assets . 2,808 4,674
‘Depreciation of property, plant and equipment : 14,735 20,581
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets : 48,790 46,457
Proﬁt on, sale of property. plant : and equupment . ' : (3,691) (10)
Net forelgn exchange loss - ‘447 1,095 _
Fees payable to LLP auditor Deloitte LLP . o 1,690 1,273
A detailed breakdown of fees payable to Deloitte LLP is prowded below:

Fees payable to the LLP's auditor for the audit of the LLP accounts 196 164
'Audn of LLP's subsidiaries and overseas branches pursuant to legislation o 372 - 316
Tax services ' 922 632
Other services pursuant to Ieglslatlon . ’ ’ 67 61
All other services » 133 100
Total fees payable to LLP auditor Delome LLP - ‘ ' 1,690 1,273

Please note that remaining other operatmg expenses pnmanly relate to subcontractor services,
marketing, tralmng, professional subscnphons and offi ce costs.
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6 __ s:éff'cost's. e
T Group SO A ¥ )

The average monthly number of 2022 2021 2022 2021
people employed during the year » i .
‘(excluding Members) was: . - ~ No. No. No. . .NP;_

Feee‘arriéi‘s h "1.654_ 1,684 629 604
Supportstaff o . } " 14,537 .. . 1,602 .- 8500 .- 482

Total S lsae 3i88 1128 1,086

Staff costs incurred durlng the year 2022 2021 : 2022 2021
) were - . £000 £'000- £'000. e 000

Salarles . . 333,007 . 32_6,891 245, 017 237 349
Soclal secunty costs 37,530 34,',9,(")6_ 28 355 . 26 507
Pension costs* - 5,400 9,483 - 5, 436' : 9,428
Other costs . 10,645 7.412 5,433 2,533

- Toggl T 386582 378692 284,241 - 275817

*Includes actuariaf adjustments

.7. . Investment income / (Finarice eXpenée) ‘ L
' R - 20227 2021
£'000: £'000

Investment income__ . .. :
Interest receivable ' o .. 983, - 168
Interest onlease receivables o , W 1. . - 16

Fmance expense ' . ;
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts - (223) (416)
Net f nance expense on retlrement benefit scheme i ) . @ 00) (400)
Interest on lease liabilities - _ ‘ S (5,212) (5,285)
Unwmdlng ‘of dlscount on prowsrons o . (220) (297)

' e : s ’ S S o (5,7558) . (6,398) .
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8. Taxation

2022 2021

* £'000 £000
Currenttax : . .35279 30,787
— 38219 30787

In most lmuons, lncludlng the UK, inoome tax payable on the allocation of proﬁ\s ] Members is.the

personal Ilabllrty of the Members and hence is not shown in these ﬁnancual statements.

The effective rate of UK corporatxon tax was 19% forthe year ended 31 December 2022(2021:

19%).
2022 2021
. : £'000 £000
Profit before taxation from comi_numg operations ‘ - 383,229 385863
Less: Amounts subject to personal taxation v (347,082) (354_,99__9_)
Profits subject to taxation L e 36,147 30,864
Tax at the effective UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2021 19%) 6,_868 ' 5,864
Different tax bases in other jurisdictions - ‘ , 28,009 23,997
Adjustments in respect of prior years i 402 926
Charge for the period 35,279 30,787
9. Members’ share of profi ts
Profits are shared among the Equny Members after the end of the penod in accordance with
agreed profit sharing an’angements )
The average profit per Equity Member is calculated by dw:dmg the profit for the period, after non
Equaty Members profit shares, by the average number of Equity Members.
2022 2021
Group No. No.
Average number of Members : : ' 348 339
Average number of Equity Members: . : : 234 - 229
£'000 £000
Profit available for division among Equity Members - | 347,950 355,076
Average profit per Equity Member 1,487 1,550
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. 10. Intangible assets - Group

29

Computer  Consideration o
software for client base Total
. £'000 £'000 . £'000
Cost ‘ _ '
At'1 January 2021 31,021 2,374 33,395
Currency translation adjustments : (97) (147) (244)
Additions B . 763 - 763
Disposals .- .. . (19) L - : (19).
At31December2021 = = ‘ 31,668 - 2,227 . 33,895
Currency transtation adjustments - 62 126 188
Additions 117 - 117
Disposals ) ’ (498) - (498)
At 31 December 2022 L 31,349 2,353 33,702
Amortisation ) ,
At 1 January 2021 23,712 2,374 26,086
Currency translation adjustments . (92) (147) . (239).
Charge for the year - 4,674 - 4,674
Disposals ] - ) (19) (19)
At 31 December 2021 O B 28,275 2,227 30,502
Currency translation adjustments - = ‘56 126 182
Charge for the year 2,898 - 2,898
Disposals" ' .. . . " (460) s (480)
At 31 Deceniber 2022 ' ' . 30,769 2,353 33122
Carrying év_m'dvd:h't
At 31 December 2022 - 580 - 580
- 3,393

At 31 December 2021 : 3,393
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Computer

"Consideration

At 31 December 2021 3,247

. software for client base ’ Tofal
. ’ .. . £000 - £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2021 ) 30,363 2,373 32,736
Currency translation adjustments (58). (147). (203)
Additions . 677 - 877
At 31 December 2021 . '30,982 2226 33,208
Currency translation adjustments =~ : S B 126 a7
Additions ' : ' L L 71 - 71
At 31 December 2022 - 31,104 2,352 33,456
Amoartisation ' S ‘ _ -
At 1 January 2021 o : 23,160 2,373 25,533
‘Currency translation adjustments (58) (147) (205)
Charge for the year . . 4,633 - 4,633
At 31 December 2021 . - ' ’ 27,135 2,226 - 29961
Currency translation adjustments R 51 126 R
Charge for the year : 2756 - . 2,756
At 31 December 2022. o 30,542 _ 2,352 32,894
Carrying amount . ' . ' o )
At 31 December 2022 ) 562 - 562
: - 3,247
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12, Property, plant and equipment — Group

Computer

8,009

" Leasehold Fixtures Motor Total
improvements equipment and fittings  vehicles

, £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cost _ o '
At 1 January 2021 98,314 101,656 71,726 494 272,190
Currency translation adjustments (7.914) (1,170) 5,333 (50)  (3.801)
Additions _— 2,475 2,751 "1,078 25 - 6,329
Disposals (1.581) (616) (319) (114)  (2,630)
At 31 December 2021 91,294 102,621 77,818 355 272,088
Currency translation adjustments 1,986 1,373 2,403 28 5,790
Additions 11,550 7,311 1,706 16 20,583
Disposals (15,631) (11,139) (7.360) (6)  (34,136)

. At 31 December 2022 89,199 . 100,166 74,567 393 264,325

Depreciation ' ‘ ' : ’ '
At 1 January 2021 56,490 88,598 68,611 268 213,967
Currency translation adjustments (6,028) (1,221) 4,759 (3) (2.493)
Charge for the year 10,004 7,851 2,701 25 20,581
Disposals (1.578) (616) (313) (112)  (2,619)
At 31 December 2021 58,888 94,612 75,758 178 229,436
Currency translation adjustments 394 1,328 - 3,071 17 4,810
Charge for the year 7,972 5,012 1,726 25 14,735
Disposals .(14,506) (9,385) . (6,573) - (30,464).
At 31 December 2022 52,748 91,567 73,982 220 218,517
Carrying amount ’
At 31 December 2022 36,451 8,599 585 173 45,808
At 31 December 2021 32,406 2,060 177 42,652
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13.  Property, plant and equipment — LLP
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Fixtures

" Motor

At 31 December 2021

. Leasehold =~ Computer
Improvements ‘equipment and fittings - vehicles TO'?.'
© £000  £000 £000 . . £000 £000
Cost ‘ A
At 1 January 2021 75,602 81,286 50,777 326 207,991
. Currency translation adjustments (6,806) "(202) 6,290 (50) (768)
Additions 1,661 1,829 . 962 25 4,477
Disposals. _ (1.548) . (298) . . (176) (42)  (2.062)
At 31 December. 2021 68,909 . 82,617 57,853 - . 259 209,638 .
‘Currency translation adjustments 621 728 74,525 16 2,890
Additions 6,350 4,764 921 - 12,035
Disposals R - (7.863) (624) ... (1,887) .= (10,374)
At 31 Dacember 2022 - 68,017 87,485 . 58,412 275 214,189
Depreciation ‘ ' ' o :
At 1 January 2021 44,332 73,190 48,091 104 165,717
Currency translation adjustments ~(5,108) (458) 5,561 (3) (8)
Charge for the year 7,439 5,080 2,022 25 14,576
Disposals v (1,548) (296) (170) (42) (2,056)
At 31 December 2021, 45115 - 77,526 55,504 84 - 178,229
Currency translation adjustments 275 690 1,450 2 2417
Charge for the year 5,538 3,238 1,281 22 10,079
Disposals (7.863) (622) (1,880) - (10,365)
At 31.December2022 " 43065 .. 80,832 56,355 108 180,360
Carrying amount :
At 31 December 2022 24,952 6,653 2,057 ‘167 33,829
23,794 5,091 2,349 175 31,409

-
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14. - Leases (Group as a Lessee)

@ght-of-use assets.

33

Buildings

Total

Equipment
£'000 _£'000 £'000

. Cost

At 1 January 2022 325,144 2,561 327,705
Additions - 37,483 314 37,797
_Disposals (41,864) (305) (42,169)
Currency translation adjustment. 10,11 1 49 10,160
At 31 Dacember 2022 330,874 2,619 333,493
Accurﬁulated deprecietion

At 1 January 2022 118,081 1,462 119,543
Currency translation adjustment 105 6 111
Charge for the year ' 48,248 542 - 48,790
Disposals (25,111) (288) (25,399)
At31Decmnber2022 : 141,323 1,722 . 143,045
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2022 189,551 87 190,448
At 31 December 2021 207,063 1,099 208,162

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 18. The Group has various leases based
in different locations and on different terms and therefore additional qualitative information is not

deemed necessary.

‘Amounts recognised in prof it and loss:
Depreuatnon expense on nght—of-use assets
Interest expense on iease liabilities

Expense relating to short- term leases
Expense relatnng to leases of low value assets
.Income fr_om subleasmg nght—qf;use assels

2022
£'000
48,790
5,212
889
38
(11)

2021
£'000
46,457
5,285
1,004
16
(16)

At 31 December 2022, the Group Is committed to £0.3 million (2021: £0.3 mllllon) for short term leases:

(see Note 26).
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14.-  Leases (LLPasa Lessee) (continued) -

Right-of-use assets SR
T Buildings Equipment " Total
£°000 -~ £000 £000
Cost " o
At1 Jantiary 2022 : 208,210 1,161 209,371
Additions ' 24783 34 25007
Disposals ‘ S (@ae) (295) " (23916)
Currency translation-adjustment ' 3753 .. .. .20 . ...3773
_At 31 December 2022 - 213,125 1,200 214,325
Accumulated depreciation :
At1January 2022 A 81,738 . 728 82,466
Currency tfra,nsla‘tion‘ adjuéhnent . (358) ' 7 (351)
Charge for the year . 31,317 266 31,583
~Disposals o _ (12,249) (278) (12,527)
At 31 December 2022 _ 100,448 . 723 101,171

Carrying amount ,
At 31 December 2022 oo 112,677 477 113,154,
At 31 December 2021 126,472 433 126,905
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18. Investments - Group and LLP

Investments of '£11.1. 55,000 disciosed on the Hogan Lovells International LLP balance sheet are
valued at cost, which is equal to carrying value as at 31 December 2022 (2021: £10,952,000).

The financlal statements consolidate the results and fi nancialvposition of the group, including the
subsidiary and associated undertakings listed below. The LLP has investments in the following

*Ordinary shares held byancmefmemberoﬂhegmup

Registered ofiice addresses:

1 Atlantic House, Holbom Viaduct, London, United Kingdom EG1A 2FG

221 Holbom Viaduct, London, United Kingdom EC1A 2DY
3 Averida Maisonnave 22, Aficante, Spain, 03003

4'41th Floor, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway. Hong Kong, China
S Sulte 810, Shangrl-La Centre, Olympk: Streat-19A, Sukhbaatar Dlstna. 1st Khotoo. Ulaanbaatar 14241, Mongolia

subsidiary undertakings:
: Proporﬁon of
.Country of ordinary shares or
Incorporation Activity ownership held
Hogan Lovells (Alicante) SL & Cia.,, S.C3 Spain Legal services 100%
Hogan Lovells (Alicante) Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant © 100%
Hogan Lovelis (Alicante) S.L. 3 Spain Legal services 100%
Hogan Lovells (CIS) 2 : United Kingdom  Legal services 100%
Hogan Lovells (Hong Kong) Ltd ¢ Hong Kong Service Company 100%
Hogan Lovells (Warszawa) LLP ! United Kingdom  Legal services 100%
Hogan Lovells Services 2 United Kingdom  Service Company 100%
65 Holbom Viaduct Limited 2 United Kingdom Dormant 100%
Hogan Lovells (Geneva) Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Hogan Lovells Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Lovell & Co Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Lovell White Durrant Limited 2 United Kingdom Dormant 100%
Lovell White Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant ) 100%
Hogan Lovells (Holdings) No.1 Limited 2 =~ United Kingdom - Dormant 100%
Hogan Lovells (Holdings) No.2 Limited 2 = United Kingdom  Legal services 100%
. Lovelis (Moscow) Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dommant 100%
Lovells Hogan & Hartson Limited 2 United Kingdom Dormant 100%
Lovells Hogan Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Lovells Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant . 100%
Hogan Lovells Pension Trustees Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Hogan Lovells Trustees 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Hogan Lovells Property Trustees United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
(No. 1) Limited 2
Hogan Lovells Property Trustees United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
(No. 2) Limited 2
Hogan Lovells Real Estate Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Loviting Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Serjeants’ Inn Nominees Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Sisec Limited 2 United Kingdom Dormant . 100%
Hogan Lovells Corporate Services Limited 2 United Kingdom -Dormant 100%
Hogan Lovells UK Pension Scheme ‘United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Trustees Limited 2 '
Hogan Lovells (Holbomn Viaduct) Limited ! United Kingdom  Legal services 100%
Hogan Lovells (Ulaanbaatar) LLC $ Mongolia Dormant - 100%
Hogan Lovells Services (South Africa) United Kingdom  -Service Company 100%
Limited-2 ’ )
RJ Fenshaw Hughes Ltd 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Hogan Lovells Services (Germany) Limited 2 United Kingdom  Service Company 100%*
Hogan Lovells Solutions Limited 2 United Kingdom - Consultancy 100%*

services
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15. 'anestments - Group and LLP (continued)

* ThelLP has the power to exercise, or actually exercises, dominant mﬂuenoe or control over the
following principal undertakings:

Country of incorporation  Activity

Loviting (H.K) Limited 2 Hong Kong Legal services
Loviting (H.K.) (No. 2) Limited 3 ! Hong Kong Dormant
S.I Nominees (H.K.) Limited 3 ) Hong Kong Legal services
$.1. Nominees (H.K.) (No. 2) Limited 3 Hong Kong Dormant
S.1. Nominees (H.K.) (No. 3) Limited 3 ' Hong Kong Dormant
Lovells Limited 2 Hong Kong Legal services
Lovells (Hong Kong) Limited 3 Hong Kong Dormant
Hogan Lovells Limited 3 Hong Kong Dormant
Thunderground Limited3 Hong Kong Legal services

Hogan Lovells (Hong Kong) (No 1) LLP !

Hogan Lovells (Hong Kong) (No 2) LLP ! United Kingdom Legal services

Hogan Lovells (Paris) LLP ! United Kingdom Legal services
. Hogan Lovells (Middle East) LLP 2 United Kingdom Legal services

Hogan Lovells (Prague) LLP - dissolved 6 August 2019' United Kingdom Legal services

Hogan Lovells (Shanghal) Intellectual Property Service  China Legal services

Coltd* :

Hogan Lovells 2 United Kingdom Legal services

United Kingdom

Hogan Lovells Horitsu Jimusho Gaikckuho Kyodo Jigyo 5 Japan*

Legal services

- Legal services

Hogan Lovells Studio Legale ¢ Italy* Legal services )
Hogan Lovells (Luxembourg) LLP 1 ~ United Kingdom ’ Legal services
Hogan Lovells (Mongolia) LLP 7 Mongolia Dormant
Hogan Lovells (Australia) (No 1) LLP ! United Kingdom Dorm/ar_n
Hogan Lovells (Australia) (No 2) LLP 1~ United Kingdom Dormant
Hogan Lovells (Australia) Limited Partnership 8 New South Wales Australia® Legal services
Hogan Lovells Services (Australia) Pty Limited 8 Victoria, Australia Legal services
Hogan Lovells 8 - New South Wales Australia* Legal services:
Hogan Lovells Lee & Lee ® Singapore Legal services
Hogan Lovells Indemnity Co. Limited 2 United Kingdom Dormant
Hogan Lovelis (lreland) LLP ** Ireland Legal services
Hogan Lovells Johannesburg Inc. 10 South Africa Legal Services

‘unincorporated undertaking, denoles principal place of business

The LLP has a 100% interest in Hogan Lovells, a general partnership govemed by English faw through
which legal services are performed in Hong Kong. Hogan Lovells head office is Atiantic House, Holbom
Vaduct London EC1A 2FG, United Kingdom.

The results and financial position of Hogan Lovells are consolidated in the financial statements of Hogan
Lovells Intemational LLP. Accordingly, advantage has been taken of the exemptions provided by
Regulation 7 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 from the requirements for preparation,
defivery and publication of the general partnership's accounts.

Registered office addresses:

1 Atlantic House, Holbom Viaduct, London, Unﬂed Kingdom EC1A 2FG

221 Holbom Viadud, Landon, United Kingdom EC1A 2DY

311th Floar, One Pacific Place, 88 Quesnsway, Hong Kong, China

4 1802 Park Place, 1601 Nanjing Road West, Shanghal 200040

5. 15th Floor, Daldo Seimel Kasumigaseki Building, 1-4-2 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0013, Japan

6 Via Sarts Maria alla Porta 2, 20123 Milan, ltaly .

7 Suite 810, Shangri-La Centre, Olympic Street-19A, Sukhbaatar District, st Khoroo, Ulsanbaatar 14241, Mongolia
8 Level 17, 20 Martin Place, Sydney, New South Wales 2000, Australia

950 Raffles Place, 06-00, Singapore Land Tower, Singapore 048623

19140 West Strest, Sandlon, Johannesburg 2196
" Fitzwilliam Hall, Fitzwiliam Piace, Dublin 2 D02 T292,Ireland
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15'. lnvestments Group and LLP (continued) _ :
The LLP has a pamcnpatmg interest i in. the followmg assocaated undertakmgs

Country of . " Proportion of ordinary
: incorporation Activity shares held
Hogan Lovells Global Services ' United Kingdom Service Company -50% joint venture ~
- Hogan Lovells Solutions ) United Ktngdom Consultancy Sefvices 50% ]omt venture

.(Transfer Pnclng) Limited !

. i Regslered office addrase 21 Holbom Vladuct Londain, Unfted Klngdom EC1A 2DY

' Hogan Lovells Global Services Limited and Hogan Lovells Solutlons (Transfer Pncnng) Limited are
accounted for using the equuty method. Owing to the. loss arislng n Hogan Lovells Solutions (Transfer

Pncrng) Limited in the year ended 31 December 2022 the investment has been |mpa|red Summarised

financial |nformat|on in respect of Hogan Lovells Global Serwces lelted and Hogan Lovells Solutlons

(Transfer Pnclng) Limited are set out below The summansed financial information below represents

" amounts in the assoctates financial statements prepared in aocordance wuth United Klngdom Generally

Aocepted Aocounhng Practice including FRS 102 *The Fi nancnal reportlng Standard applicable in the

"UK'and republic of Ireland®.

Hogan Lovells Global Services Limited

2022 2021

£/000 £'000

Current assels V ’ 2889 - 3,150

Current llabllmes ) . : (2 385) (2,651)

Total equity ' 524 . 499

: 2022 - 2021

K £7000 £000

Revenue IS R o ‘ '13;563{' . 12.925

Profit before tax. S ' . 646 615

'Proﬁt for the penod .. - ’ . .. 523, . 499

Hogan Lovells Solutiohs (Transfer Pricing) Limited Do
nogan Lovells Solutlons (Transter Pricing) S0z o2t
£000  £000

Curient liabilities o , S (3,082) (o - (2:491)

Tolalequity - - (2,014)  (1.314)

2022 2021

£'000 £000

Revenue » o 4 ' N t,5:1:8, B 614

Loss before tax A A (710). (444)

Loss for the period . ‘ . (110). (459)
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16. Client and other receivables . . : -
' T o ' . Group. . . . . . LLP

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 - £'000 £'000 £000
Amountsto be billed to clients - . 118,624 103,532 75,469 64,889
Client receivables 270,171 243,812 201,951 178,449
Amounts due from Members 109,917 112,210 109,917 112,210
Other debtors 25278 - 23,296 23634 © 20,256
_ Prepayments 42,992 38,163 34,284 27,881

-566.982:‘ © 521,013 - 445,255 403.685

There is no matenal dlfference between the fair value and carrying value of clientand other recelvables
Changes in the amounts fo be billed to clients balance during the year were not matenally impacted by
any specific factors. Client receivables are shown after |mpa|rment provisions for bad and doubtful debts
of £17.7 million (2021: £15.5 million), movements on which are shown below:

Group . L LLP

2022 2021 2022 2021

£'000 £000 £000 £'000
At start of period 15,506 19,564 9,323 12,525
Exchange adjustments 1,036 - (429) '463 (300)
Write offs (3,343) (4,892) (2,240) . (2,846)
Charge - 4482 1,263, 1,955 (56) -
‘At end of period o 17,681 15,506 9,501 9,323 -

In determining the récoverability of the client receivable Management considers any change in the credit
quality of the client. Specific provisions for impairment are raised against client receivables where full
recoverability of the debt is considéred doubtful. Reasons for specific impairment could include the
client bemg unable to pay or a dispute over either the services prov«ded or the fees'incurred.

The Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the lifetime expected credit loss..
in line with IFRS 9, a provision is determined by raference to past default experience, as a proportion
of different ageing categdries of client receivables.

The group's client acceptarice procedures include a detailed review of the creditworthiness of each and
every client before an engagement commences and the concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
client base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, there is no further credit provision required in'excess
of the provision for doubtful debts.



Hogan Lovells Intemational LLP Annual Report & Finandiat Statements for the year ended 31 Decembar 2022

16. Client and other receivables (continued)

39

Further détails on how the expected credit loss falls into the ageing of client receivables can be found

below:
Group '
Client recelvables ~ days kast due date
| Average expected credit % 2% 5% 35%
gsrt:;}:;e: ,f&fL?L‘I?e@u- 07,923 98,759 58,867 32263 287,852
E*Pec‘ted'creﬁit‘léés; ‘ (1.49'2_)_‘ ~ (1985) (870) (1,_1",3_:54{: (17,681)
Clienit Réceivables o643t 96,834 55,997 20,909 270,171
Clienit receivables ~ days past due da&e ,
021 M B OWdays M e days ToW
Average expegted credt 2% 2% 6% 35%
E:g;;:;e:ntgua:\tgraﬁefault w7 2 51,835 125536 259,319
Exp_g‘c'ted cred;_tjé_lss' (1607) . (1,918) (2967) . (9.014) : (15,506)
Client Receivables 92,148 86,274 . 48,856 16522 243812
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16. Client and other receivables (contlnued)

Clients are required to settle invoices on presentation or on such other date that is agreed in the
engagement terms for that client. Terms vary but involces .are considered past due after 14 days have_
elapsed following the invoice date. No client receivables are held-as collateral for liabilities. The ageing
of client receivables past due at the reporting date was:

Group . ) -LLP

2022 2021 2022 2021

£'000 £000 £'000 £°000

Not past due ' 96,430 92,148 76,845 69,667
Past due by 0 — 30 days _ 96,834 86,274 75,703 67.760
Past due by 31 — 120 days : 55,997 48,868 39,413 32,789
Past due by greater than 120 days - 20,910 16,522 9,990 8,233
N ’ 270,171 . . 243812 201,951 - 178,449

The carrying amount of financial assets including cash recorded in the financial statements, which is
net of any impairment losses, represents the group's maximim exposure to credit risk. The group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk comprises;

Group . LLP

2022 2021 2022 2021

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Financial asset§ ' ‘ : 700,068 651,869 587,745 547,751
Amounts to be billed to clients 118,624 103,532 75,469 64,889
' ‘818,692 .. 755,401 663,214 . 612,640

Further analysis of financial assets and other risks facing the group is pfovided in Note 27.
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17. Lease recelvables

Finance lease receivables

Group LLP
2022 2021 2022 2021
_ ' £000 £000 £'000 £000
Undiscounted lease payments analysed as: '
Recoverable after 12 months 275 410 275 Y4
Recoverable within 12 months ‘ 113 515 76 103
’ 388 925 351 480
Group ) . LLP
2022 2021 2022 12021
£000 - £000 £'000 - £'000
Net investment in the lease analysed as:
Recoverable after 12 months 282 . 410 282 377
Recoverable within 12 months 93 490 57 80
o - o 375 . 900 - 339" 457

The Group entered into finance leasihg érrangéments as a lessor for the sublet of property: The .
average term of finance leases entered into is 10 years. Generally, these lease contracts do not
include extension or early termination options. '

;

Group LLP
2022 2021 2022 2021
_ £'000 £000 £'000 _£000

Amounts receivable under finance leases: : ’
Year1 . o 113 515 76 © 103
Year2 - A 100 135 100 102
Year 3 , _ 100 100 100 100
Yeard . - 75 100 75 100
Year 5 o - 75 - 75
Onwards ) . S R - -
Undiscounted lease payments e 388 925 351 480
Less: uneamed finance income (13) 25 (18 ‘ (23)

Present value of lease payments receivable 375 900 337 45T
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17. Lease recelvables (continued)

42

The following table presents the amounts inddded in profit or loss.

_Group _wr
2022 2021 2022 - 2021
, , £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Finance income on the ret investment in o B B '
finance leases _ (11) (16) ) 9
Income relating variable iease payments not 4
included in the net investment in finance
leases - - - -
The Group's ﬁjna‘nce. lease-arrangements do not include variable payments.
The averagé effective interest rate contracted is approximately 1.6 per cent per an‘h‘uni :
18.  Lease iiabilities
Group LLP
2022 20217 2022 - 2021
‘ o £'000 £000  £000 ~ £/000
Lease Liability '
At 1 January 2022 234,560 247,318 148,559 176,022
Additions 37,680 50,743 25,085 10,215
Disposals (18,768) (9,345)  (12,506) (2,499)
Lease payments (50,137) (52.392) (32,661) (_32.’3,72)
Interest » 5,21 2 © 5,285 2,581 2,523
Currency translation adjustment 10,998 (7.049) 4,620 (5,330)
At 31 December 2022 219,545 234,560 135678 148,559
Group . L
2022 . 2021 2022 2021
. £’QDO » EfOOO E’OO_O £000
Analysed as:
Non-current 158,338 180,681 100,574 114,598
Current © 61,207 53,879 35,104 33,961
‘ 219,545 234,560 135678 . 148,559,
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18.  Lease liabilities (continued)

_Group - LLP. .
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £1000 £000  £000

Maturity analysis

Year1 ' 53665 50,554 - 34,424 32,605
Yearz .. . : . 40,865 49,727 28,016 32,286
Year3 . 37,668 36,966 23,855 26,554
Year 4 - : 38,689 33228 24,272 21,836
Year5 : ' 40,494 33,443 29,574 21,805
- Onwards . . - . o 23823 . 46,084 2,486, 19,847
Undiscounted lease payments .+ 235204 250,002 142,627, 155023
“Less; future finance expense: . (15,650)  (15442) .  (6,949)  (6.464)
Present value of lease paymenits. . . 219,545 234,560 135,678 148,559

The Group does not face é’SIQniﬁqan't liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities.
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19, - Trade and.other__payables o '
' . ‘ B Group CLLP:
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 - £000 £000
T@dé payébles . . 235;303 ’ 155.3?0 188.489 ' 153.058
Social security and other faxes . 21,671 24,448 10,577 10,892
Accruals and deferredincome o " 54,105 46,350 23,251 16,564
Amounts due to group undertakings. . - - 47,620 .32,287
S S 309,084 256,168 269,937 217,801
Group’ “LLP
2022 " 2021 2022 2021
. £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Included in current liabilities 308,084 256,168 269,937 ‘2_17,801.
Included in non-curent liabilities - T . C-
' 309,084 256,168 269,937

There is no material differénce between thé fair value and canying value of the trade and other

pa'yabl'&s.

" Amounts due to group undertakings are repayable on demarid. unseéured and are intérest-free.

217,801
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20.  Provisions ' ' '

Provision for annultles

The LLP has conditional commitments to pay annuities to certain mdmduals who are e«ther former partners
of the LLP's predecessor partnershlp or dependants of those partners. An actuarial valuation of the nét
present value of the best estimate of the expected |labI|Ity for the future payments to these individuals is
obtained” at each penod»end and any change to the. provnslon necessary is recorded in.the Income
statement.

The provision fofannuiﬁes is subjeci to aciuaﬁal 'adJu'stments‘ andis payable over the life of the annniiants
The assumptlons used- by the actuanes in the calculatlon of the provision are the same as those used

in the valuation of the def ned benef t pension scheme .as setoutin Note 21,

Provision for annuities — Group and LLP

Group N (L
) 2022 i 20217 2022 2021
4£'000 . VE'OOO £000 £"000

At start of period C 9,032 ° 9961 9,032 9,961
Currency translation . ) (82) (130) 82) - (130)
Utilisation of provision - _ _ .. (445) (492) * - (445) . (492)
Actuarial adjustment I . - (1,874), (604). (1 874) (604)
Unwmdlng ofdiscount:. . . .. .. - .. . .,220 . .297 . . 220 - 297
Net movement in provmon LTI T @asty, T (929) . (2181) L (929)

Atendofpenod S el 6851 9,032 6,851 - 9,032

N - 2022 2021 2022 2021
Provisions are ana!ysen‘as.f’ell,ews. S 42.-0_00 . g'ooo E'OOO e £‘D_QO

Cufrent liabilities . | : 426 483 ,,4.2_5; .. 483
. Non-current Ilab:lmes N : ) _ 6425, 8549‘ 6,425 '» ~ 8,549-

6351.'” i 9032"'"- 6,851 9,032

Major assumptions used Invaluation: ‘zozz; 2021.'"" T 022 2020

T T S S S ' %pa.' ' %pa . ._._.%pa'_’_ %pa
Discouritrate  * SRR 470':' ’_ 190 . 410 180
Price inflation ... . e 320 320 320 - 320
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21. Retirement benefit schemes ~ Group and LLP

Defined contribution scheme ' '
Employer contributions to defined contnbut:on retlrement beneﬁt schemes totalled £9, 904 287 (2021
£8 755, 193) . .

Defined beneﬁt scheme :

The LLP sponsors a funded defined benefit pension plan for qualifying UK employees. The Hogan
Lovells UK Pension Scheme (“the Schieme®) is administered by a separate Trustee company. The
directors of the trustee company are independent profess:onal trustees. The trustee is required by law
to act in the interest of all relevant beneficiaries and are responsible for the investment policy for the
assets and the day-to-day admlmstrabon of the benef ts.

The defined benefit scheme of the LLP is closed to new members and all future accrual. Under the
Scheme, employees are entitled to annual pensions on retirement. Beneﬁts are also payable on death

Profile of the Scheme : :
The Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) includes benefits for currenl employees, former employees and
current pensioners. Broadly, about 60% to deferred pensioners and 40% to current pensioners.

The Seherqe duration is an indicator of the weighted-average time until benefit payments are made.
For the Scheme as a whole, the duration is approximately. 16 years.

Funding requurements ’ )

UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently. The last fundlng valuation of the
Scheme was carried out by a qualified actuary as at 31 December 2020 and showed a deficit of £21.0M.
The LLP paid deficit contributions of £1.9M p.a. from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021, will continue
to pay £2.15M p.a. from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 and paid an additional £5M contribution
in two instalments in December 2021 and January 2022 and which, along with investment retums from
retum-! seeklng assets, are expected to make good this shortfall by 31 December 2026. The next funding
valuation is ‘due no later than 31 December 2023, at which progress towards full-funding will be
revxewed .

Risks associated with the’ Scheme
The Scheme exposes the LLP to a number of risks, the most significant of which are:

Asset volatillty
The DBO is calculated using a discount rate set with reference to-corporale bond yields. If assets
underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. :

The Scheme holds a significant proportion of growth assets (equities, diversified growth fund and global
absolute return fund) which, though expected to outperform. corporate bonds.in the long-term, create
volatility and risk in the short-term. The allocation to growth assets is monitored to ensure it remains -
appropriate given the Scheme's long-term objectives. '

Changes in bond ylelds
A décrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the Scheme's DBO for aocounhng
purposes although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the Scheme’s bond holdings.

Inﬂation risk

The majority of the Scheme's DBO is linked to mﬂatlon and higher inflation leads to a higher DBO
(although, In most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect against
extreme inflation).

The Govemment's response to its consultation on RP| reform was published on 25 November 2020,
and strongly implied that RP} will become aligned with CPI-H from 2030. The consequences of the
outcome of the consultation may cause the net pension asset to change.
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21, Retirement benefit schemes ~ Group and LLP {continued)

Life expectancy
The majority of the Scheme's obhgatmns are to provide benefits for the lifetime of the member, so
increases in life expectancy will resultin an increase in the DBO.

Risk Management )

The trustees Invest in growth assets to back the liabilities for the deferred members. In addition, in
July 20186, the trustees entered into a buy-in policy with the Pensions Insurance Corporation (PIC)
to insure all of the liabilities for the members who were pensioners as at 13 July 2016. This policy
protects the Scheme against inflation, interest rate and longevity risk for these members.

The principal assumptions used to calculate the liabilities under IAS 19 are as followé; '

2022 2021

Key assumptions used: _ ' . ' % %
Discount rate 4.7 1.9

. RPl Inflation . : 32 . - 32
CP! Inflation v ' 24 24
Expected rate of salary increases . n/a n/a
Future pension increases o 2.0 22

The post retirement mortality assumptions used are based on the standard published tables "S3PXA"
as adopted by the actuarial profession. These were then adjusted to allow for future improvements in
life expectancy in line with the Continuous Mortality Investigation 2021 core projections and a 1.25%
p.a. long-term rate of improvement for males and females. On this basis the life expectancy assumed
for a male pensioner aged 85 as at 31 December 2022 was 22 years and for a female was 24 years.
Also on this basis the life expectancy at 65 assumed for a male currently aged 45 as at 31 December
2022 was 23 years and for a female was 25 years.

The principal assumptions all have an effect on the IAS19 accounting valuation. The following shows
the sensitivity of the value of the defined benefit obligations to changes in these assumptions:

: : . Approximate Impact on Scheme
Assumption . Change in assumption liabilities

Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0.5% Increase/decrease by £9.7m
Rate of inflation Increase/decrease by 0.5% Increase/decrease by £5.0m
' Increase/decrease expected E ' i
.Rate of mortality lifetime at retlrement by 1 Increase/decrease by £4.3m
year L

In presenting the above’sensiﬁ\/ity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that
applied in calculating the defined benefit obhgatnon liability recognised in the statement of financial

position.



HmMImWMW%mn&FWS@MMM@W&MDWMA ) 48

21, Retirement benefit schemes — Group and LLP (continued)

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

12022 ¢ 2021

£000 £'000
Fair value of scheme assets ' A 112,450 185,800
Present value of defined benefit obligations (119,500) (190,300)
Retirement benefit deficit Co o ' o (7,050) . . . (4,500)

Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows:

2022 2021

A . £000 £'000

Interest cost N . ' 3,500 2,800
Expected retum on scheme assets ) ) (3,400) (2,400)

100 400

Of the charge for the year a net debit of £100,000 (2021: net debit £400,000) has been included in finance
expense. Actuarial gains and losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Scheme’s assets are stated at their market value as at 31 December 202 Movements in the fair
value of scheme assets were as follows:

2022 _2021

. £'000 £000

At start of period 1 " 185,800 173,900

Expected retum on scheme assets 3,400 2,400

Actuarial (losses)/gains - - , T (72,200) 9,600

Contributions from sponsoring employer . 5150 - 3,900

Benefits paid- _ o - . (9,700) (4,000)

At end of period , 112,450 185,800
‘The actual return on scheme assets was as follows:

2022 2021

) £'000 £'000

Expected returh on scheme assets ' - 13,400 2,400

Actuarial (losses)/gains on scheme assets - ’ : (72,200) 8,600

(68,800) 12,000
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21. Retirement benefit schemes — Group and LLP (continued)

The analysis of the Scheme assets at the balance sheet date was as follows: ,

Fair value of assets

2022 2021

. ] £'000 £000

Equity instruments . 24,100 63,000
Long-term gilts and bonds : ' . 38,250 53,800
" Property : . ] 13,600 10,500
Absolute retum fund ' 6,400 12,600
Annuities ’ . ] . : . 29,100 41,600
Cash/net current assets . . 1,000 4,300
Overall ' - ' : 112,450 185,800

The overall expected rate of refum on scheme assets is a wenghted average of the individual expected rates of
- return on each asset class. The expected retum on assets is determined using current and projected ecanomic

and market fac(ors and after taklng_actuanal advice.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the related current service cost and past serwce
cost was measured using the projected unit credit method Movements in the present value of defined

beneﬁt oblrgattons were as follows

2022 * 2021

N £'000 . £000

At start of period 190,300 204,400
Interest cost ’ : 3,500 2,800
Actuarial (dains)/losses from changes in demographic assumptions (1.800) 300
Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptnons (72, 900) (11,200)
Actuarial losses/(gains) due to liability experience . . 10,100 (2,000)
Benefits paid , _ - (9,700) (4,000)
At end of period o 119,500 190,300

The analysms of the amounts rmgmsed in the statement of oomprehensxve income is as follows: '

2022 20_21

| £'000 £'000

Actuanal (Iosses)/gams on scheme assets . (72,20_0) 9.600
Actuarial gains on scheme liabilities . 64,600 12,900
22,_500

Total actuarial (losses)/gains » .(7.600)




mmmmwmh@m&n@smmfamwmemwmmm ’ ’ 50..
|

22. Members' interests — Group

Members'

" capital .~ Amounts MZ’ES,‘ILS :
" current ﬂue from other :
liability embers reserves Total
£000 - £000 £000 £'000
Members’ mterests at 1 January 2021 i 93,352 (86.979) 333,172 339,545
Allocated proﬁts - 308,764 (308,764) -
Drawings and distributions : - (333,985) ' = (333,995)
Capital introduced o 13,709 o - 13,709
Capital repaid (4.957) - = (4957)
Differences on translation - - 29,027 . 29,027
Pension scheme actuarial gain c - . - 22,500 22,500
Profit for the financial period : .- - 355,076 355,076
;Jloezn;bers interests at 31 December 102,104 (112,210) 431,dj1 420;9‘05‘
Allocated profits N s 359,134 (359,134) -
Drawmgs and dustnbutnons - (356,841) - (356,841)
Capntal introduced ' ) 18,139 - - 18,139
Capital repaid (8,148) - - (8,148) -
Differences on translation - - 23,199 123,199 -
_Pension scheme actuarial loss ' - - (7,600) © (7,600)
Profit for the financial period - - 347,950 347,950
;ﬂoeznz\bers' Interesis at 31 December - 112'995 ~( 109,917) - 435'425 ‘ 437:504

Members other reserves rank after unsecured creditors in the event of a winding-up. The amount of capital
that each Member is required to subscribe is determined by the Board and under the Members' Agreement
of the LLP a Member can only withdraw capital aﬂer he or she ceases to be a Member or if their share of:
the partnership decreases

From 1 July 2014 non-equity members in certain jurisdictions were required to subscribe capital.

L}
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23, Members’ interests — LLP

Members" . - Members'

_ capital -, Aniounts equity -
current due from other
liability - Members re_se'rves Total .
L T _£'000. . -£'000 . ..£'000. . £'000.
Members rnterests at1 January 2021 93,352 (86,979) 246,956 253,329
A!located profits. - 242 779 (242 779) -
Drawrngs and drstnbuhons ‘ -7 = Coe (268 010) ' = (268,010)
Caprtal mtroduced o 13,709 - - 13,709
Capital repaid - (4957) - - - Ci o {4,957)
Drfferences on translation - , - 24, 842 . 24,842
Pension scheme actuarial gain . - = . - '22,500 22,500
Profit for the financial period . , - .-, 269472 269,472
Members' interests at 31 Decemmber 2021 _ 102,104 _ (112,210) 320,991 - 310,885
Allocated profits o E o 277,814 (277.814) " -
Drawings and distributions ' : - (275,521) - (275,521)
.Capital introduced’ ) 18,139. . = 18,139
Capital repaid , : .. (8,148) < = {848)
Differences on translation . e .0 = 17,859 17,859
Pension’ scheme actuarial loss ' : K z i, 600) (7 600)
A'Proﬁt for the ﬁnancral perrod . . - - 261 185 261,185
Members' interests at 3 December 2022 : 11'2.09‘5 (109 917)' 314_,5_21 31'.6,,7‘99

The members of the LLP have agreed that members' other reserves rank aﬂer unsecured credrtors in the
event of a winding-up. The amount of capital that each Member is requrred to subscribe is determinied by the
Board and under the. Members Agreement of the LLP a Member can only wrthdraw caprtal aﬂer he or she
ceases to be a Member or rf their share of the partnershrp decreases :

From 1 July 2014 non-equrty members in certarn Jurrsdrcuons were requrred to subscﬁbe caprtal
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24. Notes to the cash flow statements

- Group =~ . . LLP : ’
2022 2021 ’ 2022 2021 .
£'000 © £'000 £'000 “£'000
- Profit from continuing operations 445519 441,342 338,857 336,250
Adjustments for: - .
Anmortisation of intangible assets 2,898 " 4,675 2,756 4,633
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,735 20,581 10,079 14,576
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 48,790 46,457 31,583. 28,753
Profit on disposal of property, plant and o e : '
. eqr?iipmer?;?po oeroP T, plantan 3,691 10 T 2
Decrease in provisions (2,181) (929) . (2,181) (929).
. Operating cash flows before- ; aad '
mgyemeﬁ;s e et 513452 51213 381,094 383,285
Increase in receivables (58,851)  (31,452) (51,203) (29,002)
Increase in payables 37,224 .- 21,362 46,628 36,664
Cash genéerated by operations 491,825 502,046 376,519 .390,947°
_Corporation taxes paid. (37,979)  (54,621) (33,938)  (51,757)
Net cash from operating activities . 453,846 447,425 342,581 339,190
' o 2022 12021 2022 1 2021
. L . : £000. - £000 £'000.- £000
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: ] o . S i
Cash at bank ' 294,702 272,551 252,243 236,836

25. Capital commitments

At the period-end the group had con,tracied to spend t14.'9m on property fit-out costs and associated.
professional fees (2021: £5.4m). At the period-end the LLP had contracted to spend £6.1m on property fit-
out costs and associated professional fees (2021: £3.2m). These arounts weré not provided for in the

financial statements.
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26: O'pe;ating lease comimitments

At 31 December 2022; the group had: outstandmg commitments for future minimum lease payments under

, non—cancellable operatmg leases whlch fall due as follows

: Group :
Land and Oth' Land and " oth
buildings T v?"' " buildings ther
2022 2022 T2024° - 2021
__£000  £000 . £000,.  E000
Within one year 327 30 330 22
Between one and five years - - b -
In more than five years . - © e o - -
N 327 30 22

-330

27; Flnancial mstruments _

Financual mstmments compnse loans short-term borrowmgs cash and deposnts chent reoervables and trade

payabl&c Members capital and amounts due from Members. Fmancnal instruments result inthe gmup being

exposed to liquidity, credit, Interast rate and forergn cumency risks. lnformahon about credlt nsk is contalned
- in Note 16 and the remaining | risks are covered below. ' h .

The carrymg amounts of fi nancnal mslruments are as follows: ' o
N ' - " LLP

Group L .
- 2022 2021 W 20220 2021
. £'000 : £'000_ ... Eo000 £000

Financial assets : : : _
Client receivables 270471 243,812 204951 178449
Amounts due from Members ‘109,917 112,210.1' 109 917 112 210 <
Other recelvables . 25, 278» 1"' 23 v 23 634 ' 20 256
Cash and deposuts = - 294, 702-;-_ .272 551';» _252 243' S ‘236 836
Assets at amortlsed cdst" T " 700,068 - '651 869 L 587.7_45_-' 547,751
Financial liabilities R SE S C
Merhbers' capital (192,095)  (102,104). (142 005)  (102,104)
Tradé payables o (233,308) (185,370). " (188,489)  .(158,058)
Liabilities at amortised cost o '(345,403) - (287,474).. . (300 584) ' (260,162)
fNet ﬂnancial mstruments S 354,665 364,395 287,589 .
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27.  Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk

The group has in place facilities to cover short-term workmg capital requirements but follows a pohcy of active
management and targeting of client receivables and amounts due to be billed to clients; to minimise the level
of short-téerm borrowings. All borrowmg faculmes are arranged through the LLP. :

At 31 December 2022, the LLP had commntted bank faculmes for penods up to a year totalling £120
million (2021: £1 20 million). Atthe ba!ance sheet date the group had not utilised any of these facilities, some
of which are repayable on demand. These facilities have been, or are being, replaced or renewed after the
period-end and are now due to expire between April 2023 and November 2023 when they are expected to be
renewed or replaced. . .

Trade payables of £233 million (2021: £185 miilion) are payab!e within 12 months of the balance sheet date.
Members' capital is repayable when a Member retires. As 120 days’ notxce of retirement is required, Members'
capital has been presented as a current liability.

~ The amount of undiscounted cash outflows for financial liabilities is equal to their camying amount as both
trade payables and partner capital are non-interest bearing. These-undiscounted cash outflows are potentially
due for repayment immediately, subject to Member retirement, or within a two-mionth time frame. In practice
the majority of the Member capital balance is viewed as being of a long-term nature and in most cases
) upltal introduced by new Members is expécted to replace that of retiing Members.

Interest rate risk

Cash and cash deposits of £295 million (2021 of £273 mllron) eamed interest predommanﬂy at a variable
rate linked to the Bank of England base rate. Interest is payable on a maximum of £30 million of the
overdraft facilities at a ﬂoaung rate above the Bank of England base rate. Interest on the remamder of the
£120 million facilities is payable’ at a rate linked to the LIBOR. The weighted average interest rate on
overdrafts was 1.5 % (2021: 1.5 %). Management recognises that interest rates are lidble to fluctuate and,
the group accepts this risk and does not consnder it likely to be material:

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity. analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for’
non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amounl of the fiability outstandmg at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole
period.

If mterest rates Were 1% higher and all other variables were held constant, the group's profit and
equity for- 12 months ended 31 December 2022 would have increased by £2,947, 000 (2021:
£2,726,000).
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27. Financial instruments (continued)

Forengn currency risk
The group’s income and expenditure is pnmanly in sterling and euros. However some fees and costs are
denomlnated in other cumencies, as are certain of the transactions with the LLP’s subsidiary undertakings.

The group does not hedge or enter into forward or derivative transactions and is exposed to translahon and
transaction foreign currency exchange risk. .

The group had the following net foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities:

Group - " LLP

'2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000
US Dollar ) 65,336 59,411 43,989 33,775
Euro 199,517 159,382 175,199 134,851
Japaness Yen B . 5,238 4,229 2,138 - 3,182
Singapore Dollar : {794) (819) - -
Chinese Renminbi . ' (6,303) . (7.202) 228 (3,692)
Hong Kong Dollar : + 6,452 3,483 - -
Other 703 1,379 846 358

270,149 219.863 222,200 168,474

The falr value of all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, estimated by reference to the net
present value of future cash ﬂows is'materially the same as their carrying amount '

Foreign currency sensitivity analysns

The following table details the sensitivity to a 10% increase or decrease in sterling value agamst the relevant
currencles. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 10% change in sterling exchange rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit and equity where steding weakens 10% against the relevant currency.
For a 10% strengthening of sterling against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposute
impact on the profit and equity and the balances would be negative.

Profit or Loss Euro currency impact US Dollar currency impact  Other currency impact

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000° £000 ~ £000 z-ooo ~ £000
- Group 19,952 15,938 . 6,534 5941 530 107

we 17,520 13485 - 4,399 Y3377 301, (15)
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28.  Related party transaction’s - Group and LLP

Transacuons between the LLP and its subsudlary undertakings which are related parues have been
ehmmated on consohdatlon A

Dunng the year ended 31 Decembef 2022 the LLP mcurred ‘costs of £13,568 ,000 (2021 '£12,925 000)
through transactions with Hogan Lovells Global Services Limited. As at A December 2022 the Group owed,
Hogan Lovells Global Services Limited £2, 889,000 (2021: £3 150 000) ‘

As at 31 December 2022 the Hogan Love|ls Solubons (T ransfer Pncmg) lelted owed the Gnoup £2 838, 000
(2021 £1,957 000)

The share of the profit and the remuneratlon of the key management team for the year ended 31. December‘
2022'amounted to £24 4 m:lhon (2021 £24. 6 mllhon) Thisisa consolidated set of financial statements. The
members control the LLPandas such theré is no one oontrolrng party




